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Loracl Schoohiet Tapc 1 = Pape 1
Interviewed by Lucille Brown

Tape 1 « Side 1

G Now, Mr. Schochet, if you would be grod enough for the
tape recurder and for me to glve your name,

A, My name is Isracl Schochet.

Q. Very good, and % you could tell me whét year you

were born.

A 1898,

. 1898, and where you were born?

A, In a small town called Strijavka.

. Strijavka. Could you spell that?

A. Set=prei-j-a~v-k-a,

o, Gr z~h,

A, Or z-h,

AN It could bs, yea. That is in what country?

&, In the Ukraineg,

G In Ukkrain g, Well, it was not the Suvviet Union at that
time,

A, Right,

G Ok, 1898 you said. Right? The year you were buorn
was 18987

2, 1808,

Q. Now what was thoe ncarest blg city? Do you remember?
A, Vinumitsa,

Gie S0 you were near...Oh, I agce. Noﬁ wepre you...The

nearest blg city was Vﬂmmffﬁb which was also the nearest

Dl iy '
big city to that shiefe] 7" Now, did you wnow the Cri tuky
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A Tew,
Did yow...How did yvou get to meet theny
Youpr father andé I wot in 'BG ssava i, L&Z‘m o,

Oty 30 wasn't until loter on. I sze,  Thim, through

Some puople Dean Hﬁlﬁ}<{ weps Intep-noreled o

from 3vrijovice.

I soc, RoWw weg youss ashietel 4

Yegs, a annll vown,

A ginnll town,  How many people weprd in 1t9

Kot execoding,..zoy 500,

A00 poeoplo or Pomdlics?

Pooplo.

Feuplo.

I dontt think there gerdo 300 famllics, I dontt

G, kb wos o saall fown,  He ned two rows ol houses...
mvery Jew had & homae,  Thers wasnt®t such a thing

ingg.  twvon Lhe pooraeast had o home of choelr owo,

Yoy,

S¢ I would imopdne we had two powe of homes.

¥ow yuu're swking s clrele with your bwnds. They
o elrele?

Thiey werd,

80 thore wag an lnner oirele and an oubtay elreloed
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A That's risht...two cireles,..ond in the midadle of e
cirale was an wupty space, » lorge empby spacs, and in thoe

middle of it there were two rows of stores.

. Ig that right? S0 1t was bullt on ¢ circle?

A, In o cirele,

6. - Ie that true of o W

108 Not neccssardily, but this is how my honestown was, ..

o eircles of homes, o Llabpo enpty spsee, in the middloe of

it tuo rows of stores,

e How ebout how meny atorcs in the prows?

A, It should be nout more then shout 30,

AN 50, 80 that wes quite o largoe enmpty spuoa,

A, Large.

(ha fbout how large...

&, fnd thet spaes gorved a8 o mrketploce., fvery. .. I

dgon't pemenber the deys, Tharsday opr 8o, all tlie peagants
chat surrcunded Strijovke would gather on thst doay.  They
would. bring thelr products, eBell them to the Jews of the
town, instead of paying with cash They exchenged thelp
producte fur the products thot the Jews wore selling in
the storesy Loy kerosenc, matches, herring...sll kinds of
meychandiscs, srocerics, moomfsotured goods, They
exchonged. . X0 wan o trading ploce, . .every weok the sone
day.

Qe Now were thesc atores,..Did they have a2 poof and

'l
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Wwere they rogular buildings or were they just...liks the

stalla?

A, Reralor stores,

Q. They were reguloy stores.

A, Buiidings like  Booouse every gtore was o bullding by

itsoAr,

Ce By itself.,

Fi It had no conneetions like o gupormorket or som thing
like,..Mvery glore was an indlividual storo,

G, I wish I could find somebody who could desw me a
picture. You knmow like did it have,..¥Was 16 woocden, firgt
of 2ll? VWore they wooden?

A,  Most Vikely, yos. It wosn't made oub of bricks, noe.

ke
We had only one brdick buildiﬂ&;im‘ﬁii Lo,

£ wWhat was thnt?

&, A home .,

Q. It was 8 home,

A, It was & home, but hae woes one of the richest men in

town and he..,fotually he dnherdited thet because I dont'ts
remenber hdm buillding it., 5Su he must hove inherited from
his psrente. That was the only brick building. 211 the
rest were wood,

e You know...dctually 4t's vory fonny bocouse when
vyl , JFiret thing you pletur: ghien you §ic%urc¢’5h+°+6( is

rows running like yvoerilcoelly and then some poralliel snd l‘)ef’ef'j e clecle =
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reminds me of these old wagon train movies, you know, wher

the getilers...lt's almost like o fortification,

A, It locked 1like 1t,

AN You lnow what I mean? _ :
A, Yes. |
Ce To protect thempelves,

A, Md all these honeg,..all that town...wss surrounded

by peasants... Christibnaﬁg peesants, They were in the

thousands. 4Z%7Am&m.;4@,Zﬁz

Qe Md they lived in the 1ittle villsages,
A In the villages.
Qs How blg was a village? VYou know, it's so hoprd for

an. fmerican to get the ecwuneept of the difference between...
letts say,..a town, a ﬁ&kaagz’ ang a 6i9gi’ « Ban you
explain what.

iR our homes wepe MLZRRANS | In the village they
were bullt out of mud and even the WHA — and the roof
wag strew and one little window, perhaps. They weren't os

modern a8 the Jewish homes ?/lfh §§k¢7b;

Q. Even the poor Jews.

A, Zven the poor Jaws,

AR Is that right?

fie Thetts right.,

e Taat's very clear., I Think that's the cleoorest I've

heard, 8o...1 see,..80 you were alwmost urban compared o
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A, Correct,..in every wey, as far ag bringing up, ss for
a8 educsticn, a8 fur as literacy...no compurison Lﬂ£4AMM%/.
Thoy wore illiterate. 2%, the czar allowed 2% litoracy among
the peassnts and I suppose you went ©o know why, The czar
did net want the pevsants to becume educoted, litursito, so
CPPression _
thiey would protest thelr eperabden. I you don't know any
better, you go alcong,; but the Jews, practically everyone,
with very few axcepfions, everyone hud soms educstion...ono

Hebiy e

Wg
mere snd aﬂﬂfﬁhﬂiﬂ as Tapr as bpe-wes concernsd or as for us

the..,

Qo Seoular,

B Seeular,

AN Tell me, I you would, you khow how your Hown Wod, ..

Let's gay sevelologleally, you know...Let's take an egonomic

colnt of view,

A, 90% were middle class.

(s That means traders. Then they owned the stores,

N Right, stores and even commerce batween the bilg

el L,y éggﬁé‘?&ij avk:s;, .

tle How big was VGHﬂJfSQJ at thet time? Allow me to
interrupt you so I have.59me 1d ea,

A Vinmtsa wed o lurge town with perhaps 100,000 Jeuws,
L md 1% had non-Jews, too?

£y Oh, a 1oy of non-Jews, too, but it was practlcully o
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Jewish town,

G, Oh, it was. %ﬁaﬁkﬁh&b

A, Practically. I @55tuwﬂ§hwere more Jews then Gentlles.,

@ in Vinnitsa ¢ |

A, I assume B0,

6. Because it's an old city. It goes back to the ChmielniTzky

Rebelllion., They went through Vinnitsa then, too.
A, That's it, but I sssumc there were more Jews then

(}€n+1k9 begause 1t was a large city and there wepre o lob

cif Jows,

0, So that was 100,000 already, Vinn tsa

Py Right.

e Oh, I see, Alright., 8o there wos commerce...

A The Jews in town, sbout 90%, were homeowners «nd
traders,

Qs So it was really mther o welleto-do tcwn...ﬁh*efej .
Hy I wouldn't call them well=to-do, but they muansged Lo

live nicely., They werentt rich,

fa No?
A, They weren't rich, but they lived nilcely.
0y Mright now., . Will you explain what {hat means in

your terms,
A, Thnat meansg, , . Takke my parents. They had o vepy, nleo
hiene plght An the eenter of that circle. We had cbhuut

gaven or eight rooms.
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0, You did.

A, My father had a store.

G What kind of a store?

4, Sell groceries,

G, A procery.,

F On the top of that, he was a wholesaler,selling flour,

a.
He would go with s blg wagon, He hired Russian peasant with
his wagon, horses or bulls or whutever 1 was, they would go
s’
to the big town, to Vinnitsa , puy.10 sacks of flour. Every
gvery sack.
gack had about five pounds., That's 200 pounds., When he
brought it to 8trijavka he would digtrlibute these 10 sacks
between those stores, They would sell them alroady evepy

dsy. He was half wholesaler and half refasler

A How about your mother? Did she have help in the
house?
A, My mother had a maid for the children...Since I know

myself from my carly youth,.,from babyhood.,.until I left,

AN Wag the mald a Jew?

A, No.

Q. A peesant.,

& The malde were =ll Gentiles) maybe one very, poor girl

that became a maid, very poor. Thal was meybe tne in 166, but
mosgt of the malds and the servanta were Gentile.
(e - Ok. S¢ your mother always had help in the house.

fis Oh, yes,
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A Alright., Now welre describing your family as s well, .,

& comfortabla.. .,

A, Comfoptable, I wouldn't say wealthy...comforteble.
Q. Confortable Tamily.
A, He could ha#ef%é%%bﬂb to glve me education., I was

cxpsngive, First of all, I had & Hebrew teacher, a gpeclelist

in Hebrew and I had to pay for it,

0. He came to the house then?

A No. He had a clasa.

G He had a olass,

A He had a elass. Mg We used to go toe class and my -

father peid & & month for my Hebrow edueation. He had,..I
had another teacher who tsught me all the rest of the -fiHKe-

Russion languege, methematlics, langusges. He pald him

separately.

s This wag in preparation for the 9:/;4'\ nazigm,

A In preparstion, but since I lived in Russla and ther.
.(' [

was 18% NUMErds f“i?&l&%*t even think of going «.. () bea
cause I would have to go to bﬁmﬂn fsa, T would hove to
live in there which would have been expensive, So I had

my cducaticn liko..,.0h, you don't know Brofessop WAaKSmepn

He hed the same thing in ’aff“*kf .

A You mean Zelimemil-alman,
Zalman. |
A Zellman. They call it exferna . So I...And we

paid.. .My father pald that fteacher, teo. Perhaps 1t would
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have been.,.until ny...until the time that I would get marrled
or scmething, but i‘t happencd so that the first world war
O crrubd Yo Araf¥el,
came and I was 5. Sorweald-be—Grafted. In order not
to gt drafted I would have ¢ be in & sechool, Schoul oxe-
tended the right to...not to be drafted,
Q. Exemptions,,.draft cxemption,
A S0 my [father sent me to,,.not to Ver-f'fSa,\.. In anm"f‘SL

they got very strict. VYou can lmagine.,.I went to take a

test...
YT
Q. In the jymﬂﬂ/z" now.
fia In the § 7/»'74’4}’ “J)?md I passed with the best marks. They

will give me o eertificate, but they wouldn't sccept ME Hhore
3o Now what year did you want to enter In there? Did
that matter? No, I dont't ms=an what...like what,.. 1900, I
meen whot form. ..

Ao 1912.

0y Yeg, but I meon did you want to enbter in the first

year or the gcceond or the third?

A, No, that was alresdy in the fourth,

0. In the fourth year. How many years...Thzre were four
vears to a j?”f”?/? ez

N Fight,

AP Bignt, And you went into midway.

L. Midway.

. .. Could you enter inte anywherce along the line?
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Ay, Yes, 1f you pasged the test. I pesiged the teat and

still I wsan't accepted because there wes no room anynore.

They had thelr /o7#7 . They had thelr 15% and it was.,.

So I went home.,.back,,.and I got my educstion...kept on

with it, but when the war came in and I was afraid I would be :
G a/ﬁM:su@ofawﬂ“bﬁk "

drafted, I waent to,.,.There was 3,576V3k%7“'. Thepe was » big &a

tewn by the nome of L F"ﬁ’ """“"-l_z': - Thet was the neme of the

t {2 [4111- »
AR . Idke that would be L-=i...
fia Iimjepetel-c-tez, jfnd a new scheoel of commercs.,.:n

middle school, ..,

G. Like 2 business school?

A, Idke a business school, elght classes to clight yeors
with the rights of all governmental schools, but 1t was 2

private.

G It was & private school, f
. 2?&2:2:@
i Yes, and 1t was neu e Su, I - s bare I had

2 chance, If I passed the testa...In order to be accepted,
cvent in that sehool, you had o be one of the best becausc
they accepted only thoss that passed with the best marks. Bo,
I had an education already in zzﬂﬁijc Por sbout five c¢lusses
and I could nave gone for 4 test to enter the sixth, but I
wag afreid. As long as I had to be the best T may a8 well
gacrifice with o class or twe and I went and I entered te Ghe

fourtti, I took ¢ test for threce elossces only. I denft have to
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tell you thet I passed..,a'fiva, whlch meansg excellent in every

subject and I was accepted. That saved me from the war, ssvoed

my life.
Q:o I BEE, ., .NGW. -
L In order to - ? . Thet was to prove how my paproents,

the parents finoneislly were...to send o ohild to &5Wer unoere
Jo?flsw'&aam./% ’

I haed to pay for tuition, for bourd, roon, transportation. Ky

purents did it and they weren't rich., They werenﬁvtﬁn¢wmﬂtpich é

people, but they had enough for thelr expenses.

A Now; for example, 1if we o baek ©o your home, bhow many

children wers fthere in your home by the way?

A, We were...Let¥s sce,..One, two, three, four, flve,
(. Flve. children and how were they, ..l mean like woere you

top or bottom?

A T wag the oldest,

Q. You were the oldest,

A, I was the olaeat.

A,  The oldest son or the oldest...,

A The oldest of them,..The oldest of all of.fiﬂhb‘
s S0 you were the oldest, yea...

fs md, for some reaaon,fT*ﬂ“Sfbe /ifior BOME aascn.

There wag nothidng that they would refuse me,
Q. They would not refuse you anything.

A nything
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A Pirst of all, you were a male, and second of all, you

were the oldest...twe prime reasons,

i I was the.,,thelir...
Q, The star, yee. Now who game sfter you then?
A After that ceme o sister of mine by the name of Rosa and

then one died, @ brother, Then came & brother and the baby's
a slster,
| ol
(G So, essentially,ybadhﬁ&%vfgﬂtwo boeys and two girls. Now

did w»ll the ehildren receive the svme education?

A, No.

Q, Mo, now could you fell me about that?

A, I educated them,

Q, Slright. Tell me about that.

A I educated them.

G You mean really, actuelly, physically, personally?
A fetually, personally educsated them.

0. But you went acway.

i I went awey when I Wes already 21 yecars old,

N Alrdight., So when you...The feascher would come...¥ou

rN

would go to elass. Right? You must have started with c:ﬁexief.

« Let's go buek to that., Right? You started with..

b, Yes, when I wag three years old I sterted with CJ1€dfﬁﬁ
. Right, Ok. /nd then [N Ched@you stuyed for how long?
i For about threc.,..about five years.

o, flright. Till you were cight.
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Then you started geing to the teachers.

To the Hebrow...

T Hebrew tescher., Then...

eight

From ee= to...8ay to M. Then I left town and I went
thal LNPO W”(‘;" for my school, secular{#¥ sencol.

At the ocge of 149

Right.

Mhis was then in the fourth,..fAt that time you enbered

the fourth grade of commeree?

A

o

Ay

Q-

Maybe I was already 16 then. The war was in 1914, .,¥es.
T was. hetwaen 15 @nd 1b.

Yea N

if you were in 1898.

16, heecoause I wes born,..The war started in 24,

August 14,

In 19185 I was afrald that they might draft mo.

Right. Ck. But now you alsc sesid that you went to.,.

You had & Russisn teaghsy.,

oy

A

ew o

in

..‘
Qe

Y¥es.

Wes that in...VWherse was that? That was in youwr touwn,
_ >
%mﬂmf
In muf 26004

n They prepsred me for all my tests.

When did that start? What..,.Wes that simultansous. ..

AL the semo time, . .g8imaltaneous with the Hebirew.

Ck.

So you yere in these classces all day long?
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£, £11 Qay from 8:00 until 6:00...I got out of ther-. It

wes dark slready when I cume home,

A Now when osnd how did you teach your brother snd sistoras?
A, I taught them whon I was on vacation.

G But your parcnts did not sond them to the teschers,..

fa To sny schools. Later on when I was already oub,...X

dontt know'how/rChULﬁ{; my slater that still lives in Russla,
uow she gobt her education and she became o druggist, Fut tow

she got it, T duntt know,

s But 1t was net through your porents?
I Hot,..It was through my parents, but I don't know when

e But I mezan,. Mot as ... In early childhood,
A Not ghile T was here, no. UWhils they were children

I used Lo teoach them.

e I seze, Now can you explain that? Wesn't that,..I mesn
a% least one othey brother. You would expect at least the

boy would go to gehool,

b, My sisbter wasn't inclined to get education, the one
that was following me, So, as much as I could ﬁwach hey, 1€
was plenty for her, The others came slroeady when I was 15...
16 years old, .und when I came on vacation. ..

Q. By that time the woar had, maybe alresdy inteprupted
thdngs.,

J”L. Y(JSI
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Q. s Loy es your Pdmw%zaﬂﬂ'. Do you think that would have
influcnced yoeur parents? I['m egpeclally thinking about the
cther by, Becsuse girls weren't considered so importent, but
for a boy not fto heve,. . Was he sent to cheder

& He wes sent to cheder tou, but in,..You have to

romenber thot we hod Lo leave town whon the revoelution game in

i917.
i, That'e what I'm saying.
T Then the whole fomily moved to o big town and then I hed

-

ncething to do alrcady with e » I was living separatoly al-
_r*eady. I went to school. Besides. . .dctually my perents in the
blg town \/mmﬁaf when they fled from the Foj rowlS , ghey wepd
rofugess.,

€. Thatts whaet I'm seying, So the wer actually was partly
responsible for disrupting your brothep...the younger two,..thw

cducaticn of the younger two,

5, Right beeaass aetually,..X moved out from theprs.

€, Begauss of thoe war,

L, Beogeuge of the war snd in order te find a dwelling
place in Pﬁ””!%5ﬁ?,IWa orgenized o group of anateur setors.

%& 50‘»’16-’1‘5*
It was elready under thoe Russiag/wﬂéw' And we sceted in the

theater,
G, m Vianitsa,
iy In Uﬂ91"tt5‘: Su we wers considered alvesdy as stote

performers, S0 asg stute performers we were entitled to food, to
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el hed 2 room oy myscl? which they coronfiseated from o rich
sent. They told him, ., .We wint you to give 8 room tu Mr,
Schochet, That's all. He eouldn't say no.

o, What was thoe nome of your group? Did you have...giva

yourgelld o namn.?

We were 4 dew tSH 5?."’ Kipldf‘:n’t remember.,
Q. Oh, 1t was Yiddish theater,
fia A Yiddish theater., We performed. ¥ yldd'e‘h :
Q. It wasntt tho 'H""’b"’”“-*?
by Ho.
. That was Hebrow.
A We performed in Yiddish., sctuelly...
BN ind,..and at that time, in those early days, They would

sponsor.tine Bolshevile states sponsored Yiddlsh, in other words
goparate ethnle ocultursl sctivities,
A Surce, It wag,..We were within the rights. Why did we
g 1t? Becauso when T wag in town yet,..
. By town you mean in your town,
B In wmy town, in Strijavka., We were.,.We'll say filve ‘
high school students znd ffive ﬂv‘f—-u elresdy, MW 5“5‘/, W 5 heslinko
We were galled intellectuals 03 ﬂfivlﬁw‘ﬂ snd thors wWere some
pocy peoeple, Ttoo, in town. On the top of that we orgonized
o library(?) in town and, of course, to heve a library you
’ - Arvvto,
have Go have bocks ond (/Ld%% u have to puy for them.,

So this group of actors during the vacation month, we performed



end we ghareged entrance fee snd wlth thei money we bought books

and we geve chopldity to the poor.

b

How are yuu telling me thet thids groud was crganized then

pefore the war®

It was uvrgenized...

0, It was started before the war.

£ Before the war, during the czar, before the wmﬁrf{ ht,
Q I you remenber what | year it wag?

A Must hove been 1912..,1913...s5cmething like that.

Pl

Just before...a couple of years before the war.

Before tThe warp,

snd what. . I you were performing in Yiddish, who wers

you performing? What pleys did you perform? Do you remcmber?

E Wnaet plays? I cen hardly remember the plays, but...

1 Dybbuk
Did you dc¢ the W “j;"ﬁ'z" example?

£, Mirele ( ) . I can hardly remenber the names of them,

but, you know, one perforndémce CL‘EF?&VMM chd

&

N

. Oh, 1t waan't 1like & repertory theater where you'd

perform avery weck or every night...oh, I ses,

Wl
He preporaed cvurself for weeks and wecks...bhen & ine

performatics7

"

-

I ses. w"tﬂ\

Collectad 2 couple hundrsd rudles emdf\that money we

splurged. We bought bocks for the library and we pave ehaprity

Te the very neody people,
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(e ¥ea, Ok, Oh, that's very interesting.
7
A&, L@tually I dontt ‘ what heppencd. We esme into...
i, You Gold...I'm sory -
fis Not ©o you. We came To once Jewlsh familyn..six o1

aoven ehiildpen, So one of us says tou the man... You're so pour,

Wi kxR have b fﬁjiﬁguf 1y do yuu have go many chlldron?

vho amarvty Wﬁa;- Do T Pleacece

. That's funny. Thdt's true, but you have to pay for your

pleasures, too. In this case somebudy elsce pald for them,

Now...a8kright, so thore's your schooling. While you were goling

T thie Rusaian teoacher, while you were still in 6.)(7"6!’/?6{/
LA

How let's ses.  Thabt would have beaen three...That would have

been 1901 until 1900, spproximately.

A, I remember 1907 I had. ..

Q. T Hebraow teachar and the Ruassion?

A, And the Russisn.

o Gk.  Alright. So you must bhave been like 10 years old,

Is that corrccet?

A Approximately.

. Ahout 10, Mnd you say you studied Buselan and Russion
literatur: and Cthe Russian languages.

mnd all the rest of the subjocts . lw‘fwﬁw

Q. o Alpdight,  What I'm...I want to get at 1s...Waat kind
of., You were too young at 10, T weuld...To do any hoeavy roads
ing In Russian X I like Tolstoy or...

A, We vond ochil dpenn's books.
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Go cm‘em 8 bouvky,

fie A%ﬁ&.kiﬁds ¢f books, ‘The books were for the ehildren of
the town. Gvery chlld in town gould go to the 1ibrary, take

d book ol Friday und read LT during the week, The followling
Friday he‘d bring back that beok and get ancther book.

Lo How thds ds Ch library thoal you're talking about., . .Now
wolt 2 winute. You cun't heve the twoe things et one time be-
CUU8Ee Whll You wore going. .. Whon you were 1D years cld golng fo

Gile Rusaion teoecher, you could not have all...

AN e Russian teacher used to eome to my house,

G Ofry, hre came o your housa,

FI de goave me o Lecture overy day.

(e svery day.

i Yes. I didnt't g to him, To the Hebrew teacher T went,
G Was that,..a&nd that was a clags,

PR Tuat was a clougs.

e Sv there's mors than ono person,

H Thie wes nout a class,

Ce This was a prlvate lasson,

fiw This was o private lesscn. Then he wes paid by the
month, My fathor psid him/&ym' ’MW '

o + 0. Wos ho goemebody. .. Wher: did he ecome from?

iy He cume froﬁ \444”‘%54L, He was o sbtudent, a unlvoer-

ity student.

oy

o 1, I 8icC,
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A In crder Lo make o few dellars.,

I Right,

Py He would come to Cown and glve lessong snd. ..

2, - Did he hove other private pupils boesides yourselD®

b, ot teo many because woe woere...all of us...wes eelled
intellecibusls that hod hiph scucol wund univerdity educatlon,
ides wf;r.:f_-) shout 10 altopethor,

£, You, tat ot 10 yeors old, you know, you s6ill dldnts
ivw what wes golng Go huppen. . whean yuu wore L0 yoors, . wen
he First came:

i, He daidn®t howve too neny.  Net everybody could offord Lo

Pay.

o

2. No, I uwnderstand. Now whob did. . . Latts soy...¥ou sold, .,

If I remocher, you acid =boub 00% of the peepls in the toun ?I
WU EEE 3;,11‘;1}"_“(3?11{:.?31%-39

A You, middis ¢lasag,

£, Widdice ¢clegs and the other 1087

£y Wore workdng poople...bollor oy o ghoenskeor, mon that
taol enre on the b@‘g\mw ey sore, .. and they weron's oo
mch eomfortable beoouge all thoy could do is sew for tho :
Lown people and In o small btown you didnt'u male, .. .Yoeu didn't

buy twe o throe sults like woe buy /7 Heaent f‘. Bought o sult

for thee govkdnys and yon hied o gult for Uhe Sebbatihs ond the

nelideys.  Ho, they werenti too comfoprtoble.  He supported

Wit pur mamies

LG
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e . Dk, Now in your bouse itsclfl wag your fath&r 4EY

orbhodor nan?

A Neo.,
(e He was not.,
A My mothor was.

Q. 8o your father wes not a fﬁas;d

A He wasn't : fﬁDLLAL at oll, He was o highly cduented
man in Hobroew, bizhly cducated; but he was., My mobhor dida't
like iU, but there wos nothlng that you could do.  BMoebher wes

4

wotiplous and he wosn't so.el.bub stdll e wont Lo 8ynopgosue

evopry Sabtupday. Didn't g wockdays, but Saturdsy be never

failad or helddnys, but 10 ho ges bome, w11 goy, o wooks
ie,e,

days, ond be would come ond w&f% gy, . X111 never Copget iE...

V2

G300 in the afboencon e would. .. My mother's name was Ee%?ﬁf?ﬁf
. . , 2y
He would say, o oBedte. ., Vou mdersbend Jowlabh? ﬁw<@£¢Z?)_

d/ MW%(Mf

é} . Yil‘? s .

vmd

£ T He wes going bu skip it.,  Shoe wouldnts

, but all in 211 ke wosn't orthodox.

fle Now v w did bthet g over dn o smaldl W ‘/(:11%0:-3 Shet?
i, Ag T told you, wmy wmother WaS;ZQM(CL and o ﬁﬁzidnﬂt
dore, wotll gey, di gomething to offond ows peligion.,  Deep in
1ig howrt, 1If he could skip proyer ob the house, nobody would
¥now, but you wouldn®t offend the orthodex in,..

AN In the villags.

e In She widlliage ... 000 Gown,
)
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Q. I shouldn't ¢all 1t o village. I must remomber thot.

Itt's not & villuge,

i Itts a town, Bvery Saturday ur every holiday bhe would
B GO ‘f’h“ﬁ » vbserve 211 thoe ?ﬁff/ﬂi@(/g s 1T you know wime

;L_,M lg, dbserve 10, 8u, he bohaved himsell us s
regular Jew, but deep in his heart be Wﬂf/"z .
3. Now how did you kmow that he wasntt? Did bo 2117 Did

you talk to anlm about these things?

£, S L saw it,

€4 Gh, you Felt 1¢%

B, I felt 4¢ and I saw 1C. T saw thet he wasn®t too wa
strict. Here I'11 pive yt)umwﬁ”’“f’&" |

Q . Walt., I heve Ua wabeh thie...ilvight., 1It*s ok.

A, en I was 13 I hwd & big Bar Mitava in the synegugue
and I used to Aﬁc‘d\lﬁe ('ﬂ&’g\ ang HM M'M Tndu wes L3, 4

4«,

wheode vesr I used Go pdt on %SM;"L’ Ve ryday, but when .”i
become 14 years old I decided thath / I dan' S wang Jlﬂ/’!’ff%
Po me 1t W0 AL and I...
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Tape L - Side 2

Ga Ok. So continuc.
iy So when I was 14 I deeided te put the cords on the toble.

I gaid.. . Mothor, Pather,. . Thot's it...nof%FJ'”q for me.
Pather dldn't sayelééﬂﬂlﬂ . HMother objected, She Baid;.;

| He Al
Why? IHaxx zx How come? Whylﬁﬁ?ﬁmfdd ? I said...This is
finel and I'm not going to...80 here I knew that 1t was bo=
tween mother and father,
Qe I seo. 8o thai's...l'm trying to figure oubt the years.
That was about 1912,
&, 191z,
Cie Yea, I'm brying to keep your ages and the year...be-
couse I have to kKeep thoe war in mind, you know, tnings
nepponed.  So...Did your father wear s beapd?
L, But he used te trim 1t, If he was orthodox he wouldntt

toueh a hair on it,

C. Right,
A He trimmed i€,
A Dk .
A, fectually thoe boarber trimmed iv.
. Ol1, Thier: wag g barber in your‘bh+€4€{ ?
A, There wad & barber,lune barber in 4Dcdﬂ
Q. S0 thepre maat heve bern other people thepre that trlmmed
thelr beords, too,
e
A Fu%#‘oF'r) Thie barboer ho was busy with: the hslreuts,

tha Ohy, that wes pormlitted.



Iaracl Schochet Page 25

A, " Yeu, oh yea,

AN Haircuts were permitied.

A, ‘Hairocuts were permltted. It's only you should not toueh
the. ..

Q. Paglal hair.

A Paclial hair,

Q. I see,

A, The beard end the whiskeras.

A1 I see, but he 4ild.

b, But he did.

A5 He must have becn, then, a dapper man, He was the...

Took eare of hle appeearance,

A_. S‘IPE'Q !
., I sec.
A, So I?..In'every regpect thet he wesn't 100% roligious

orthodox Jew.
Q. But you say he was welleeducated smg kx in Hebrew.
A, Oh, he was welleeduested in Hebrew, not in the Hubroew

language, but he wes a schelar In the Hebrew seriptures.

AN I sea., I was golng to say he was & 1little cerly for
ttle’ [ )
A Iike the Bible and the Talmud{#). You know what the

Talmud is?
A ¥eg.

Ay In that he was highly eduecated,
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Q. And...Did you get eny modern Hebrew cducation at 2119
A, That was my Hebrew teachep,

AN That was modern Hebrew.

A, - That wae & modern Hebrew..,the language)and that playéd

a big role in my 1ife.
Q. It did. _
A, Because when I came 0 ﬁ&MU@%&%ﬂ’c Rumenie...I came
practically the same tdme as your father. 8o your father
conulints find employmant for the Hebrew language, for some
agon éﬂfﬂﬁ&f f’ Perhaps thiat would have happencd to ma, Lo,
but yuuar father, on the last yesr of him living in Rumania,ﬁhe
found a 1lilttle village wherce thoere were about 10 Jaewish
families end he beecame the teacher Gf’ thelr chilldren and they
paid him well.
Q. Yes,
A After teachdng for sbout four menth, he got a viss Toom
the United States and hes had to leave. He fell very bad tno
icvave the e¢hdldren in the mlddle of the season. 8o he came
Bé’%’ , but ther: was nothing that k® you could do.
. ok
He hiad to leave, He mrX uouldﬂsacrificeﬁgg. g I met your
father in that ﬁé%/ » We had cne family tThat both of us
knew and we met and he told me %W@?’ So T told him. I
know Hebrew and I could teaeh. 0Oh, he was so happy. The
next day he tocok me over o that village, introduced me ag o

Hebroew teacher ond I was teaching thoere fopr over twoe yoars, I
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had the life of Riley...good pay, Rzmd good focd.  You can
inmegine, When I came to £QW444hJ%I was as skinny s o rooster,
I weighed ebeout 120 pounds. You can imegine that in schoel we
usaed to wesr uniforms snd the teilor had that bad jeb and my
mother used tu fecd me snd nothing happene=d. In Rumanis,

within two years, I gained te weigh 175 pounds.,..180,,.

Q, Oh, my Lord, You put on 50 poundsa,..scmething like...
nore.

A I couldn't bend down to tic my shoes,

e Ohy, that's funny. Rumenian cooking 1s better than

Ukranian cooking or Jewlsh cooking.

" 8o the Hebrew language came in very handy.

Q. I see, Thatts very interesting.

A, Your father suffered “1é&ﬂ5/ befcre he got the job,
Q. Before he @ound this job, yea. He didn't.,.I ¥now

when we interviewed him, he dldn't even want Lo talk about

it and I know I said to him...What could you have done, you
know. He scunded as AL he hed commitited o crdme.

AN Hard labor.

Q. find that's what he ss8ld. He was carrying woter buckets
snd se on and he didn*t went to tell us,

5 He didn't went to tell 1t te you,

Q Right., He d4id tell me, No, he did,,.becouse I sald...
Did you kill scmebody? You know, I dont't csre what he did,

&, Hard labor.
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A I could have execused anything at that point and he
said, . .Finally he says.,.gﬁlgﬁgz.wfa T ssid...8c, what's so
bad about that? But in thet time 1t was considered...

R For a student, for a Hebrew scnolar to do that kind of

work isg humilisting,

Q. At that time 1t was considered humiliating. &ggz@,dewmﬂfbb
A, I can't visyalize me doing that and Ijﬁﬁ@af€7£%father fup
doing that.

Qe Yea, so do I.

A. But necessity bregks(ﬁ) everything,

¢, . Now the students do anything, If they need to zo to

school, they'll work at snything. I understand. It's a
question of time and your upbringing,‘gge time when you were
raiscd and whalt you were,..what the expectations wers.

Jig You gee I was ralsed in luxury, you ses, There wasn't
a thing that my parenté would refuse me and everybody wos
catering to me snd even in town, the people...l was a sncb, I
wiuldn't sociallize with everybody., 8o now I think if T had to
do the game thinges as your father, I dm't bkqnufoﬁ7%&€C>?

Q. You probably would hove done it. It might hsave been

good for you.

A, When youtre starved and you hove nothing to east...
Q. That's what he told. He wag starving.
A& Sc you do it.

A That's right. Well, anyway, I'm gled that that poertion
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of the reading had a happy ending and, if your mothsr had only
seen you, she would have beon very happy at that point, to see

thaﬁ you had put weight on...sc puch welight,

A, Well, shlie saw me ¢6“443V when she waa...when I brought
them over to Canada, |

Q. Oh, she did. 0Ok,

'A. I brought them over to Cenada. I saved thelr 1ife,

Q. HWell, that's getting,..¥ou will tell me, I hope, abopt

that, Now let me g8ee. So...fdetuslly then as far.,,.If you esn
shink bsek to your relstionship within the famlly, did your
brothes and sisters;..Let's see, I mcan,,.If you were the
atay performer in the family, now how did you get along with
your father? Was this something that was...as [ar as they

were coencernaed you could do no wrong...both parents,

O They treated me nilee and I Treated them nice.
. Both porents.
Al Both,
o %
Q. Ok, Now was there any feelling on the part of the childron,

the other children;with‘respect...

A, They looked up...also ¥mk looked up teo me. I wes the
oldest,

OR Oh, I soe.

A Phe most educated and I had to edusate them,

Gy 8¢ it worked out alright.

A, They cabered t me, foo.
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Qe ¥ see.

A Until this day I'm u{a«u«?@ ffﬁ&

o 30 ;herﬁ-wasn‘t the...any feriction cecasioned by this.
£y Ho. -NOThey wouldntt dare,

Q. Ok. Thatts very interesting.

A Then...S0 I wes in Vinadsa . I naa my eduecation pere .

formed and...

Q. Now that'’s already...Now wait & minute, I d&n't want
to Het mixed up. Now you went...Until...Lst's sce.

fa In 1915 I went to LFPW‘}"’?’ and I entered that sohool,
G That's the eommerce sehocl, but waeit a minute. The way

broke out in 1914, aAlright. Now tell me sbout the cutbresk of

war...At thet time you were still home. Right?

A, Right. _

Q. Did 1t affect your 1life in any woy®?

A, No, In no way because I wes small yet.

G In 1914, ,.Wait & minute now. You had t¢ be abiub...

going cn 16,..sbcut that time.

£, Yea, but still I wasn®i,..They drafted ot the age of
18,

G I sce,

By So I was out of the army, out of...I was ofrald that if

I let 1t go, then they wouldn't accept ne, They didn't wont
T geeept me as 1s,., It was Just happoned thet that school

opened, obherwisce I would have beqn. ..
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@ You mean V}nﬂlfgﬂ/ turned you down and you were afvsid

= om

that you wouldntt get into any sehibel, It would be toe labe.

. It would be Goo latge,

(. I see, So when this K}eyatbjggéhuol...ﬂo, the L;%pdgu;fQ—
gchool apened. ..,

A I went there,

0. You went there.

b, Took a test and ¢ntered that achool,

G, And that wasg in...That would be...1916. The war had

already been on for two years,

A, Yes.

AN Now how were things going in your...

A, I wag & yesr in there...

2. No, I went £o knew how the wear,..Did you...Were you

payikyg attention to the war?

A fbaclutely not. I was busy in school with my studles,
Lo Did you go home ever? I mean from LF2P0°UftL

A Bacation time,

(AT When wasg vacatiin time...during the summery

L Waecation time was in the...like here,,.Christmas and

New Year's and then during the summer.

(e Now did your parents ever discuss the war wlth you?
A, Mo, we had no discussions.
AT You were not even,..It dldn’t... It docsn't sound as if

there wos any coneern over the wor at all, Didnt't tcueh you.
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A No, a3 long as I was in schoeool, I wasn't afrald,
e
SN But I mean the me%r fact that Russia was at war didnit

interest anybody at all?

A, First of all, they hated the Russians, They wanted o
see Russlia to be defeated., In those days égg:g were pros
German and anti-Russisn. Sc I waes a whole year in Ldﬂfaahfﬁgd
when. . .vacation time and I had my diploma that I got.fof ﬂ%‘f““
certificnte,. I went to VinmitSe ana 1 applied fur o ‘Ffﬂmw¥%¢f,

. Now was thils st the end of the first yesr?

A, The =2nd of the first year.

G, S0 the gaegond yusy you Were in Vﬁf“”f+szkéhen.

A, 0 In ‘Vhﬂmrfsﬂwuntil greduation. Graduation was in 1919.

e NowW... 30 tha‘tgﬂmn&mﬁ}y Thut was ftj?’“”‘{%mﬁﬁght?

A It's called 2 senool of commerce.

g, whkid, Vinnitsg Ch, I thought that wos 1 Liepow Tz

B ih,L*QPdat;: game name .,

0. oh, I sce. 4@{#)"0
AL @t

is That's the reason why they sceeptoed me uﬁ+ﬁf%f . It

was the same geale, This was & school of ecommerce and thisg
was & school of commerce with the pights of...
. But one was a gevernment school, you sald, and mne was

& private?

fy, Both of them wers private,
Qe Private.

A, But with the rights of governmaent schools,
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. Ok,

Al They had the seme rights...the students hod the same
rights.

0. So then after 156, you were buck in ﬁfﬂﬂfifa’...

&, j}tbﬂﬂﬂ’fﬁzgd where I gradusted from .

0. Now again...I mean the whole world wes falllng apart

all apriund you and you stlll...You went to scheol.

A, Sehool. . had nothing to do with...

M No problems with heating...I mean...The buildings could

be ticated. There wes water. There was cecal. There was g food.
A My parents had everything because they were...They
opened a liitle store in Wf1”‘f5&z

0, They had moved to Vl””‘hﬁh in the meantime, When did
they move? What year did they move Lo VﬂﬂnafSﬁ; Well, thoe

wWor started in 1914,

A Triey must hove moved in Y15 or '16..,1915 or 1916.

Q. Ok, And what wes the reagon fopr thelr moving?

£, he pogrvmﬁ .

Q. Alpight. Now...8c you @id know something sbout...that

1t wus goding on.

i Yes, of cGuPSe{-

. But the be]rem& gidnt's sta.ft until about 1918, Digd
they? The Po?ﬁﬂwﬂ 'sta@ted after the revolution,

A, Well, during...In the Ukraineit sturted before,

3. Oh, they did,
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A Because after the revolution the P*?“ﬂma)ﬂgﬁarted. The
Ukranians started to fight with the Russians‘wgghe coemmunists,
Q. Yea, but seo...If we follow..,0k? The war bprsaks out
in 1914. Then in 1217 the Russian government falls and the
Kcrcnsgﬂﬁ?’ government takes over, Alright? That's in
Rebruary-March, depending on which calendapr you use. Then,
Cetober-November you have the Bolshevik take over. They took
wver from the Korenskyf government. Alright? #nd that's in
Mosc »w ond Leningrad snd then after that, then you roally have
the fighting bresking out in about 1913,

A In the Ukrain€ilt wes different, In Che Ukrein they
wers fighting already before anybhing., They used to fight one
another.

G. S¢ are you saying that all during the war this stufl waé-

going on?

A, Golng on &1Ll the time.

. I see,

£, They were,..Groups of Ukrsnions,..

., You mean like heo J‘ﬂﬂ» ng

AL Terrorists...terroristes snd they would sttaeck a small

town, kill Jews, rob thelr possessions; That was the Ulme that
they had to leave.

£, I sce.

Ay 80 thoey mede thelr living, of course, they couldnf®t live

as nlee as they lived in town, but they made thelr living and I
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sustained myeself being an actor, a performer, and as_ibstudent.
oles
They provided me with food and room and what else ot I need.

. Oh, you nmean the gtate then, ..
N The atate. Surc.
0o, But now you...If this...I'm gtill ¢.nfused aboub th

times becaugse...ls thils the Bolshevik state op Che Russilan

sgtate?
A The Bolshevik 3«
(518 Because the Bolshevik...Thers wag no Bolahevik state

£111 after,..I mean it wesn't established 111 uf ter the, ..
A But the revelution...I gesduated in 19189, In 1917
there wag & roevelutlon already.
0. Now what Ifve heard from other people is that during
the time of the pogroms and the Civil Wer, they...sdctually
they...Flrat of all, no matter huw rich they ware, they woro
starving becsusce there wasntt broad,
iR Yes, but for gome reagon my fother never starved, ny
parents never starved.
Tha S0 there was no..,¥ou never hod chis.
Av Beeasuse we never had,, . Actually we never had & pogrom. .
Only six men were killéd in one day sand that was 1it.
A Where?
A, Tn Strijavke.
Q. How aboub %‘;‘"‘150"‘? Ml

g
A The families trett .. GieE ond they fled.



Yeroal Schochet Pape 6

Q. How about 5/”! nits < g
_ »
- Vinnifser || 1 aon't know whot happened. In Vinni?3 5 epe

Were never pogroms.

0, There wepe nevep oqyrom-=
2, No, 4n e ﬁ?? Jonns, d@% S
A It was not like fht@ué*’ s Tor example,
NG, f%éﬁkkb' was a smell town and Wy””f3&,W&S a big

bown.,  They would never dare attack & blg civy, but the time
That my pnronts left town, there was & rumor that the terpor-
iste...sr¢ in the vicinity some ploce and they were afraid not
£ be killed, So they left the houss and cveprything. ﬂctual;y
that day)I wag with than yet)and we fled., We walked, ﬂctually
we walked geven mileg to that \/H1ﬂJT§a“. My father reminded |
bhimself that he 1eft ¢ll his money under the mattress. Who
poes back? Isreel., I went back...walkod back sgain seven

miles wghleh means 10 mileg.

i You mean » You went seven Versts .
A Came back, came 1luto the house, took out the meney snd

walked again..,three times. So we weren't...Financlaslly we
weren't bad even in VianfSe

AN Mg you were tekding care of...Then, what hsppened te the
other threc ehildren in Vine 7540 st asa they de thorae?

A I dontt think they did...They helped my father

the gtore, They had gome aducation, toe, I can't remember

actually becousce I didntt live with them z2lroady.



e I sce. You were living in your rooming house and you

would have been with your jg”"’m’z’mmfriunds. Is that correct?

A, Sure.

R Now I want to ask you one more guestlon about your shtete!
before I talk about your j‘ yMmuqg 2t friends and so n.

Was there a synagogue in your shtetfel ?

i TG,

0 Thers were two,. Why wers there two?

Twwgecs_use the laborers did nct agree with the middle
Torrale

cown pecple. It's a matfer of who,to be called Jo ¥t .

Lo Yes, I understand.

A, 3¢, naturolly, whiio would they eall...one of the middle

class wnd they were offcnded and they had no gay in the
matter. They were a mineprity,., Sco tt‘haﬁy declded to 3'0 fﬂ/

. . hesmed rash
themselves and they ftﬂ«&(" . That wag a shul
Was a b(i‘s»ﬁYQA"'g’f‘h

: Fhul.

(L Ch, so the middle clasg wes o - and the othep
Pes medresh

and that

wes &
A Yes. gid

b s medrash He o
AR k. Now was the € - . Were there /4“5’ M1 in
your S”'\""Q J’e/{ 9
A L can suy very few becuause a rabbl weuld come...a

T /2
rabbi, &N rebbl would come tu my Gown maybe onece o yesp.
B S0 that meant there was no grea? interesst,

i Ho grest interest and didn't hwve cny supporters op
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members or followsps. There was /W Neac {W?

Q. How aboub in Vm ntSac o Do you know?

A, 01\, i VinniTs %here wers, not thot T know tham, but I
imagine there weve.,.rabbls in there; in 'L/mmfs*aﬂ.

G, Those wu wore yebbes  actuslly and the rabbis would
b in yowr...Now yours was then just s plaln, straight, ortho-

drx gynagogue, Did you have a rabbi?

A, We had a l:ﬁﬁf s hob s rsbbi.

Qo Whntts the difference between o YV andg o rabbi?
A A _V__'_E(_,"_/ ig the one..,

a1 Poes he have a 5_"14_5_3_/'4“ ?

Ao Oh, yes, wethsa] 2 ﬁwjfmﬂgf wes o highly educatsd

man and he would perform marriages and prisn and whatnct. He
wng the p repressntotive of the Jews. A rabbi,..You'lre not
talking about the reformed prsbbi becauss there were no res
formed Jeuws, bubt there was,..A rabbi...He was a 774—‘5%//‘5- man,

T2 had nothing to do with laws or performing anything.

(Fa Ch, you're celling that o rebbi.

s Yes.

AN ¥o, I don't d¢ that. I would call...¥What you c¢all a
ruy s I would enll a rabbi. W#Whst you cull & rsbbi, I

would coll a rebbe , Arebbe i3 a %5'/(%'6 oo Ho docg

not have to have M’ .

Yos, theb was o _f_e;é____é@'- . We had ne ebbEs |
3 Gk, but you did hove a oV or rabbl., 8o he had to
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o to the VESAUA a1l the...Is thub correct?

i, He haed te hove e high education.
L. Llpight.  And you did heve sueh a one,
f.:;. {.)nﬁ‘u a/ é
: AP RS

) . /!
e You did, New who led the 56’5 % ?
i AWs.n rersymc. V.‘—%V
it ow J-‘t.!\-. IJU_‘-HL — L]
(3s The seme  raV .
. [r—
&y The didn't hove an extras one,
(e Soowbat did he do?  Split his time between the btwo?
A No, besause actually the presonce of the £ UV pasnts

ilceegsary in order Lo cenduct services, They had a cha zan

G Oh, he was only ncceggory for marrisges, weddings. ..
A - Performed the rpellgiovus dutices, So he was the pobbi

Tor all the Jews.
g Cﬁdm

{3 Pid you have a clie 24 , tuo?  Or was thoeme  fhe 7
Lo e chazal :

2. Yo ruY snd one or two of the members.

. Yes, who could sing,

. Could sing or could Qeves?

2. Actually 1t yes o emull community,

i They werenttv pold, you see, It wWwas o small commundCy,

sveryone whic has (%MT his duty is ¢ perform befure the

> \ : el
people, 80 .. (° 2 s but we hed cowming :m) chazan! Tronm

\/{/’) 2 7 Sh
Q. Oh, you 4id,

i
N A Would come, we'll say, for o Saturday OO perfori. . .
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Friday nights, Szturday night and Saturday all day snd Saturday

night they would go from store to store or home to home and

>
s0lielt for their ..o ) . Miserable, but this 18 how...
Q. T was a2 miserable existence, you mean, or, ..
A I mean 1t was mlserable, For me 1t looked miserable

to go and solicit,

Q. You mean like € ask for a handout, They should ¥ have
been just paid,

| (e 0%k

£ They were pald by the community, but B¢ &+ golielt.

One gives him so much money, gives them lesgs, give them more and

they had already o express ym thelr opinion to like him, and

if they liked him, they gave hin nore, I they didn't like him,

they‘géve him less.

0. T see. He was dndividually judged then sach time.
A By his performance.
O I see, Tell me,..I get o fecling, and T want you to...

How did you fes=l sbout 1ife in the‘54¥€%?/ ? Dld you feel 1T

was a good life?

Al It was a guiet life, no exoibément.
;f0$nvga&x/
0. ’QEVen maan that...I mean, you know, with resgpect to its

norme wsnd lts expectations or its moréé fnd SO RERX on.

A, They dldn't expect,..they didn't lock for...,.Didn't lock
for luxuries, They didn't look to best zech other, Sverybody
lived accordingly, cccording to his mesns sand ywéaﬁéahzzé, a&mé?%?

food for the Pamlly, education sand thetds all., There wers no
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-

lezurdices, ne thenters, no busss, no cars.

£, ¥ell, T'm esking. .. 04d you Pind thet 1t wos o good 118
croddd yonu £ind v pesbtrietlive?

A It was geed begouse Lt didn't cousce onxdaoby, rivalry,
s It did not.

R ITtoddd not,  Fverybody livod in peacs with each othoer,
You can dmcgine, Thore wepre 25 storag, ... nobody spgued with
ancther.  Wioever pesgant wuntod o patreenizge, he weuld come dn o
and buy. He didn't like him, he went into his noedghbor. You
cun lmagine, my Pother distributed flour Lo sverybody. 8o 1
wos & guiet life wlth no anxdoeties, no sggravatlons., I they
could vnly meet their obllgeticns and tholr roqulrenmanbg.

: st

(e Would you have cxpeoeted, tbhewsh,..See beesuge whoen you
degeribaed how thn-?é 27 came end he had Go go to eseh hougs,
on Know, you saild 1t was pothner distosteful ond T was wonders-
ing 1 theb wos an expr@aﬂimn of your fecling for the whole
abmogphero.
Fip Nery, .

3. Just for that pertioculsr (hing.

i, Othoerwise nething te do with,zﬂ%%£ j%%é? svaryoody lived
for ndmgeld ané a1l thoy met was in the gynmugoeue on Ssturdoy.

s

A whole woek thoey didn's oven meet with cach other,

0. Ohy, Chebo Wes ROte ..
fig Ne soeinl Life.

o oy goelal 115,
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&, fbsolutely net, ALl they met was in the synagogua and
_ : . 54arv5hbfﬁ4‘%€ ' .

whon they had to oleet 2 2257 stnerwisd they dldnre.49°

AN Did you have...Dh, they didntt,

e Eyerybody lived for himself and they acbed seeordingly.

2, Wasn't thoere o Jewlsh,..Werent't theroe differont sceleties,

you know?

A No, absolutely neb, The wos no soeictivs at all,

Q. Toers had Lo be a burdal soelety for one thing. .

A So there was a Hevra /ﬁ‘/;fé/xﬁé/m{

e Right.

k., Three or four Jews,...that wes their business. £11 the

rest of the Jews didn't have saything to do with them. Thet

was Tholr business, Somebody dled,..¥You would call them up.

They would come, got pald for 1%, bﬁry them and that was 16,

3. Thet's a most intercsting point of view. I have nevep
neard this.,

You nover hesrd of 16, -0 A netds”

A

AR Never . 10 readly i8...I0's almest detached.

It's just like in hepe. Just Lke Here.

Q. Thatt's what I'm ssying. T theve nover heosrd this,

A, Somebody dice in the femily, then you eall up River-

side.  Riverside comes, Uskes the body, burlcd it. You pay

him £or it and that's all, Do B have €0 geoelalige with the

Riversides
A Did you have famlly there othoer than your porents?



Isroal Schoehet Pag: 43

A, Yes, sure. My futher had & big family...sisters and

hrothers.

0. Did you scelslize with them?

b, On, yea. That was different ot L ﬁ%i;é%b{
Qv Sc what kind of family did you hove Shepe?

&, Well, my father had several sisiers...brothors.

(21N And what about your mothepr?

L. Mnd they weres marrled.

0. Dld your mcther have rolatives there, too?

A, My mother had,. My mother came from V?””’fbﬂi Her

family was in Vinnitoa

. 8o did you socislipe Then with your uncles snd aunts?
A, Yes.

Q. And did they tiwve ehildr.n?

£, YusB, |

Q. Did you assgoeeliate and make conneeticns with them?

B As T told you I was & snob, @;en with thwm.guoauaw I

had already higher edzeation than they, wetll say. So e Lvedl £
e, We A bt £ ’

‘. ?ﬂi but not tc scvelalize. I soelalized alrendy with

all the students, the high school students ond the universitcy

ptudente., We wore aectlve, as I told you, with the library

and wlith the perfoermonces. So I soclalised with thom, mopce

with them Than with my eelatdves, But come Seturday or Sundsy

or holidays...We met sand w gothered and.,.

0. Now tell me,..Now...Lett's go...Unleas I...If thera's
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anything that you care o bring out sbout 1life in the 5#¥€*?!,
other then, you know, some pertlcoular thing that I've asked you,
1if therel's anything in psrileular that you would care to

chplasdze. ..

A Nothing cxciting., Aevét /M;fw

o Now did you find 1ife in bﬂﬂﬂf%ﬁ&,mure exeiting?

A, Oti, 10 LY QI « Vo afw?@a4%@%?ba

AN Moyhoe you wourld tell me zbout thas.

A Well, 1t wes & big elty and 1life wes cumpletely ﬁif—
ferent.

Q. Tell me, Por ochie thing, when the Korengkis ..bhen the

czarist government fell and Korenski/ came iq)you guld somos
thing sbout how the Jews felt in your S47efel  und it was
faiprly common fecling., I don't know 1 everybody wanted the
Germens to win,necessurily, but they certainly w.r: iglad o
Sew the eger fall, How did you and your.,.at this peint...
Your fellew studente were more imporbtant bo you than your
femily's opinin.,.I would lmagine., How did you and youp
fellow atudents feel ubout the Korens%ﬂ puvertnsnty

Al Oh, sympothetic.

¥
e Very sympathetic) leveryone...They were relieved from

the ezar's ovppression...no nore percentage, noe murs pe-=

strictions where ¢o go ond where o 1ive, Oh, practically
tono™ . .

every IEWE Jow was a VfVohdh and thatts fhe reagon why thoe

czar oppressed the Jews., He know thet all the Jews and 211 the
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educatoed, eapecially the cducated people, were against him.

Q. Oh, you feel that he oppressed them bectuse thoy koure

r. volutionarics,

A, Right.

. You don't feel it wos the cther way sround thet thuy e
povointionarice becuuse they were oppregsed,

A, It worked hund in hand. It wes right thils way and it wos
right the other way. They were oppressed bocause they doere...
Toe czor was afraid of thum being revoluticnaries. They wero
revoluticnery becsusce they didntt went the czar,

Qs I see zwé that's very interesting. I went to maje s
note off that because 1t was raised in conneetion with the, ..
snother, .0k, fg wis raised in conneceticon with some...wlth

the Nazi...But wetll Lalk sbout that lster because thattls

not what we're discussing now. Sc you end your friends werc
revelutionaries, but I mean there were all Cofois  uf poves
Iutionaries, you know, 2F They ren the whole scale, Now

where did you £i{ into the revelutionary,..What do you eall

1t? SBecale. Were you a soelal demoerat? Were you a geelsl

revolutionary?
A We called curselves soclalists.
Q. You called yourself a soclalist, but there were sll kindsg

off soclalists.
A, Sceialist revolutionary.

a. Alright, Now when...
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A, Against the czar.
6. Ageinst the czar, Alright. Now when the split came, did

you follow what was happening in the sceilslist party?

4, Of coursey we did.
0 Alright. snd et the Becond Gongress did you fullow what

happencd there, to0o%

A 0f course, we dld.

Qa Alright. Now wnich slide were you and your felends on?
Were you with the Bolsheviks or the}4€”5@€VUF% Do you remambor
that? At the 8econd Intermational Boelalist Congress...I
think 1t wes in fiié/ﬁ/ . No, thut was befure your 7747€
maybe. You were teoo young., Alright. 8o let's say in 1917
then in the geoond. . .after the Korens%ffguvernment fell.. .and
the Bolsheviks took over and Lenin ané Trotaky malle their

SPpEaranee, th@n)haw did you feel then?

A, We were sympathetile,
(% B Ok -
A Because we look at that as our gavioup. They gove us

froedom,  So woe looked up to them.

. How how did you feel about the Pzet that they took the
power awsy from Kﬁrenskiﬁ Would you have preferred...

A Bventually we started hating them,

€. Ne, I'm...That's leter. I mean «f the time, if you
can ramember, snd 1t's very herd boosuge we olweys lock back

and when woe lock back we color the past with what we think,
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you know., XIt's very hayrd, but 1f you cen try te romemboer how
you were thinking ot the time...¥You know when Kébens%fjwas in
power...First of all, the problem was;..

B There were only six months or 80.

Q. Yea, but they were pretty bad six months because the
problem wes)should the war eontinue or not, Right? And tho
prasants were rebelling beecsuse thoy wented...Flrst of all, the
syny was disintegrating snd the soldiers were coming baék,
Right? |

B We sympathized more with the Bolshevike then, because
they put en end to the war,..which K&Pensl{ﬂ didn't do,

N, - That's right,

A, 8¢ that pleaged us.

A ﬁdu're talking about your group now, your student's
EruuD. ..

A, Yes, our student groups. Of course, welll gay they

came into my wlfe's poronts and they teld fham they. ..

G Who they?

L. The Bolsibeviks. 4And they suaw b%@@ﬂ%ué twe beds ond
they told them...¥ou slept until today in these beds...from
now wetll be slesping, They took away the bed, They tock
awey the linen. You contt sympathize with people when they
do that, but real,..real youth. .

2 You were pretty young then, too.

F Young. It dldn't bother me thot they take away the
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money from the rich pecople., It didnt't bother me,
as they freed. He ‘P{w Cjﬂfbm

G

Fo A L!'a

As long
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Interviewed by Iucille Brown

Tape 2 - Side 1
o Now you were...finlshed saying on the previvus tape

thet when the Bolsheviks took uver,because they promised...

They...

A Freedom.

e Freedom. And they stopp=d The war,..

J And they stopped the wa%,so all in all, they were
VELI Yy

A As far ag your yeung group was concerned, yocu wepe
willing to work with them,

A, Abeolutely.

Q. Hight. Now...And your.school remained opened. You

were permlitted to graduate. You gradusted in 191G,

A Sure, 1919,

A There were no pogroms in Vinn (s,

A. Ne. |

£, Where you were living,

A, Absolutely not.

G There were noe foud shortages as far as you could sea,

A As far ass I could se¢ because...dJust by my parents..%%d;ZEZE%,
G Alright. How about the rest of the eilty? |

A. Ho shortage of food.

G There was no shortage of food,

. . { igd] : — s A
A, ,4fxéaa5';vva@ didh't hear of starving...starvatiun.dfﬂidkvagﬂa
Gl So yeu got through the revolution and the Civil War

pretty...You msnaged to get through pretty well,
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A Yen.

. fnd whet nappencd then in 1916 .becauszé the Civil Wup
wes 8till on?

Ay Theny, as I told you..,

& Yo pradusted,

£ Groduated snd we wWere @ prowp, o8 I teld you, o grouw
of anubour sctors.,  Su we were performing for ob.out o yropr's
time or 8o,

G In YVinatsa .

. In V?ﬁﬁffgé’. Thon, myseld and some of my Dreicnds Lod

.
e

in wind to leave,

€. To leave ghat?

To loave Russiao,

(e Whyt

fia Boesude wo suW bhot for usg, povrhinps, 10 would hove buoen
pood beeanuse ¥We hod everything thet we noeded ,&zt we goaw thob
for the rost of The Jows, it wesn't so pood bagause most of
Tl Jows wore ageinst Bolshevism...agoinst,, . They were...X s
wiarld conaldor 'i;‘:.-i-:em capltalista., verybody woes Inr l'1imsc.;-1i}ﬂnd

the communists would eome in o I "{:_}(11{1 vow, take ausy u,-)v;:-k‘*y.;.- |
thulng. Thaey di«.ﬁn't gara,  You slept wuntil now, T'1) sleop
From now on.,  And Dhoes Wasg. ..oy sane roagen T o wasntt a
Bolebevik., I wesn't o gompanist...deep in wy hoosrt, I
sympabhiized @lih them ss long as they gsepvad, ..

0. Fourn purpose,
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wy

fis They freed me from the czar, from the pogproms, but I...
For some reagon I could not visuslize myself cstablishing my-
sell with them for the rest of my 1ife und besides that X
figurcd that if T skip the counbry, moybe I'11 heve o chenco

Lo Bove the rest of my fomily.

&, Seve them from what?

Al from Russilea,

£, Bulb you sc¢ey; ¥you...

£ From the commundsts.

Q. You have just finishied saying, on the previcus tape,

nat everybody grosted thoem with erdes of Joy and mest of

e Jews woere povolutionories,

A, AT the beginning.

Q. £t the beginning, not by 1919,

A Not by 191G, no.

. What youlre gaying is there wes a change.

ELIN A chwnge .. .8 change of heart and thoey wepen't 1likod

too mueh, In 1919 the Jews did net like the esommunists so
et .

3. I suspect, 1f I...How, 1f I'm incorrcet, you tell me,
but frrom what you're saying, especlally those whe hed any
mesany or property or any goods at all.

b Right, They weren't surc that they wonldn't come 1n
and ehage. .. Like they come inbto the plece whero I lived, Thoy

told them,..Glve them away your bedroom or give them away. .,
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' onf pvfwa?bgy&%¥‘
Nothing that they cen do. Kh&{bééhﬁv. You know what communists
can do“ﬁﬂkfy&“ﬁ%ﬁ S¢ &1l in 811 it,...&nd the €ivil War, ..s&lter
all, wvven aefter thoe wer was finlshed they had the Civil War

and wartime,,. I dintt have to tell you,..iife 1is miserabla.

G But this is what I say, but you tell me thoatv you diadntt
experdlence ony of this in l’//’?""//'j‘“’ .

A, Beecause I was in Vinnifsa . In *ﬁﬂ’”7%§£’ww didntt

I

expericence beguuse the war was fep away from Vbqndfﬁd;, but
it was in different clftdes,

Q, But you knew sabqut 1€,

Foa But we kmew sbout it. We reod about it, 80 1 had in
rmy mind and so some of my fellows ,bo skip Ruesins ond o Go

Rumanin?and cventually g 6o the Unlied Statoeg and maybe have

a chonee to bring our,..the family, too,

AN bid it ever cecur to you...This is 1G19-1920,
A, 1920.
e Yea, 1920...'20-'21L,, . because I think the Qivil War

enpdod already and by 1921 the Bolshoeviks weroe in control. .,
perdod...becouse thei was the beglining of The flrst five. ..,
the NP, alpight. Did 4t ever occur te you te eonsider
woing to Palestine at that (ime?

T ol deatactdt y/:.{,,i‘,
A When T wes in Russile I dldn't evon think of 1%, butb

=

whient I sscaped Russia and came Go Rumanis all of tise gudden,
before I went to that V7/A£}5 where I taught Hobrew, wmy L

Wt nincled between Jews end I heard about the 20T | 1
cIRC)
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eard aboutlibfiﬂl ond I bogemo Involved,
~ In ’Eégsaﬁ"&{o‘[&}\-ﬁ &aua»" A

a 5 N o ' | )
[ In bos5 t the wxtent,. I 1ived in Bessan > (N
that eity o Belz with encther mon whe was instrumental

on bringing Jews over te Ghe. ..t Isprael,

63 Ghi, 1s thet right?
A. How did he do 16, F %-%‘&?b V24 "L"’?@“ i
G Now geit.. . Alpight, Tell me this and then I'11 go baok

to sumething I...

I Yes, I'11 tell you hiow he did i, Thoere were s let
off refugees from Russlia, from the Wkrain€ in &@M’Lm o like
I weg. They had in mind clther o ge...mo8tly to g0 Lo the
Unitaed Status, but not everybady cuuld go. You haed Lo hoevoe
affadavits., Thess thet could not go o the Unitod Stabtos hoed
a chanece tu guv o Isrscl, but to goe e Ysrocl 16 was under
tho British Mendile. Britein allowed to Ispscl, issucd &
viga UVo.,.only to the one that could produce a certilficsie

thet he owns §500.

€, In 1920, this was?y

A, Yeg., 8o what happoned?

{1 This wusg already efter the h%it@ Bﬁpw?f@?.

A, 1920 and 22 and Y25, That was, ..

0. Beecause thoy clampad down obout 1923, Dldants tChoy?

Or wag 1t bofore? Beeouse There wad one Lime there was un-

resteieted immigration tu Palostine,
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A after that the ﬁr&bs@@) protested. Affer that they
pub their fingers on 16,
0. Alright. Now when was the unregtricted immigration

pericd? Do you happen to remeomber.

A, In '21 most 1likely...'17...%18,,.119.,,120,
G When nobody could get out anyhow,
A, But later on they ssid only thoese that ceould show that

they bave$B800. 8o what do you do?  We had s righ, very rich
Rumenian Jew in‘§ﬁﬁ%2(i)anﬂ he was « reakl Juw end &
very, rich man, He had & corporation that did business wltih
Tarrexd Isracl through Britain., They sold Rumanian goods
and Israsl sold them...Brlitein so0ld them...Palegtinlan goods
and 1t was 2 multi-militon doller corporation.  So what did

he do? Only Jews ¢an du thatb.,

. Only Jews can do that, you say?
A, They made those refugees port of,..directors, sharses

holddres,. Naturslly when you belong te 2 blg corporaticn
like this, 1t was very cagy to prove to the eonsui that. ..
Hets a partnosr in that malti-mdllion dollar
coerperation and he has more than $500. I would g0 to
the eonsul to the British consul on the basls of this certi-

F worndd
ficate, Wt , .o visa, I had sbout 300 Jews in Isracl that I

brougt M Iret

. You personslly? Mr, Schochet?

A Mr. Schocghet.
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Qe

How...Were you involved then in this Jew running?

issentially it's like gun running.

A,

Yea, because I was a friend with that mon that I told

_ e
you snd that man bimself got married in A292%"7 74 ne lert
é%%?&ﬁdﬂJaﬁj te Israel. I took over.

Q.

1s that right? Was it a business? Did be...In other

wordd did he make money on this?

b
e
N
Q.
Right?
A,
Q.
A,

Wages...wages and so dld I get wages.
How dld it operate? That would be very intercsting.
How did it operate?

Yea., I mean what did...¥You hed to supply transpoertaticn,

We supplied them with everything.,
Well, now what kind of ftransportation.,.

Becausce they were Jews. They wore poor. So we glve

them tickets to go to Israel...

Q.
Al
Q.
A,
Q.

AL

(VR
A,

G

How?

On the boats,

What boats?

On the boats that go to Israel,
From where?

From Rumsnia, from (’0/;5 7%/;;5@,
Rumanils has a aseacoast?

Sure, o big seuacoast,

\‘/WLW

o, I et in geography.
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(o
A A blg seacoast, C$”5¥;mﬁﬂé big jOJiZ}

2. Is that,..That goes onto what? Onto Mediterrsanean.

A Sure., ,
Ao yansife stnnijutho Toresl

O - 8o then they would,..0k...Net Glbrslter, theDordanciins.

N o, AT Gribr ot i

L. The Bardantlles. Now since I had my family in turope...

in Russia...

Q. They were still there.
A S3till in Russla.
Q. That's what,..Now I...If you erc godng te Coll me about,

Ars you going to finish telling me sbout the Isracll smuggling

bit? Ok.

A, So I provided myself with & vise, too.

a. To Palestine.

A, To Palestine, ¥You never know, if I eon't go to the

United States, I may as well go to Palestine. 8o whet
happened? I met my wife, i /ﬁ%%m@' P

Q. in éﬁéﬁﬂ424¢4aﬁf>

A ;ﬁﬁﬁgwﬁ;ﬂiw;as*ﬁﬂfh@d??éég?tel

Q. O, tcause she want...

A Becsuse she had psrents In the United States and I
knew that her father...not parents...her parents...The mother
and thie sisters werc living in/ﬁﬂd¢éﬂfk§%t, Her fasthoer was
in the United States. So I knew thet eventuslly they would
all gu tc the United Stotes Now if I wanted to be u member

of their famlly, T knew Cor sure that I would hove to hove an
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Amerdean visa, 8o I wrote a letter Yo my unele in vere snd
he sent me sn affadavit. On the besls of that sffadevit I got
a visa to the United States. It happened sc that I.couidn'ﬁ
g(ﬁ. The ;ﬁw% came in in 1924 ond thers was o limited
amount of Jews that could emigrate every year. I wouldn't go
te Isracl because I was attached alresdy to her. 8o what
heppened? I walted, They couldn't go...They...Her Tother
Ceoulén't bring them over to the # United Statas either be-
cauge they had to wait for Thelr viss...flor the quuta; 50
whot happened? In 1924 the Tom™ got peprmisslion from the
Conadlian governm:nt tu let 5,000 Jews, refugees, emigratﬂ |
frim Rumenla to Canada,

_ . 'BQbSW&:&)
Q. It wasn't reslly from Rumeniz, It was from where
cveprybody wag crowded in.
£, ﬁwﬂ—f‘-ﬂm was part of Rumania.
2. I know, but I mesn you were not setuslly Rumanlan
Jews .,
A, We werce Rumanlen., I was & Bumandan citizen,
Q2 By this time?

A By that time,Because I paid 3ee bos and mh};ﬁm bk, "L‘W%“”a

I was boern in Rumania.

HoDae! >t Db
Qa But, essentlally...Let me clorlfy this, you know, just
fur the...for students. Jssnntiully,éLyMMAﬁ was crowded
with Hussisn refugees. 0Ol

A, S, &8 soon &8...5,000 people couwld go To Canada...
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o)

G

L

My mother-in-law sand her three sigfters and her brother...They
applicd for a visa to Canads and go did I. I went with them
tugether,

Qa It's amzging how many men wound up in the United States
beenuge thedlr wives or their girlfpriends or whatever ware
going o the United Stategy Qenerwise they might have stayed
in Russia or they might heve gone toe Palestine., It's roeally

very interesting.,

PaoHveld
N If it wasn't for her, I woeuld heve been in Israel.
€,  That!s very intercsting., So...When you were running

Jews to Palestine and these were the poor Jews that wep €
going in.,.In cther words the Jews who had mconey prefepred

to go &k to thie United States., Is that corrces?

AL the TomT  helped them finsncislly,

G, Mhe JoinT helped who?

LN Pinsneiclly, sll thege Jews that went to Israel,

D The poor cnes.

Ve The poor ones,

e New was the gtatoment thet I just made baefore corroect?

Mat 1 o Jew hoed some money and could afford it, he w.nt to

che United Stabes,

e If he was wlthin the gquotsa.
e Yes., If he had o cholce...
- If.he had & cholee...811 of them woeuld g to United

: trrf It*‘fs *
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Q-‘ Tl’l{."y W(.:Lllﬁ. T
_ P

A, They went to  Isracl " bocause there wad e guota end

they couldn't gu)and some didnt't have affadevits, HNot everye

boudy had x relutives in herw that would ask for thew) .80 the

gecond cholce was Isprsel ang here were...Thig ig where I cene

o (2)
in. I gave them the TJu pesaibllitiecs. The Fave
ther the financiazl ones.
2 Alright, AMd, for example, how would you go about

hiring & transport fur them, & ship? I mesn whait city, for
example, were you located in? You were in Belz this
whoele time.  And then you had Uo get the Jews from Chese eltles

te the aeapoft. Right? 8ou what would that boe...by rall?

A. By the train. They went by trailn to Costenza.
Loshsnga they tuok s ship.

e Now whe would hire you a ship?

A the JonT |

Q. The JomT would a: that! 0h'

A. Tven I went on the ship. I didn't puy snything, The

-
doinT  paid for my transportaticn...Iit was a Freneh boat,

Madonna(&). Itll never forget it.

. It wasg a Fraeneh: boat thet ool you te Canuds.

A, To Cenuda, to Halifux.

AR Boua.

A. When I came Go Canuda)we came to Hallfax. We stoud

there one day and the Toint brought us over o Toronia and
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they pluced all the rcfugees.??homus.
0, o©ofF e o - 4 g GRE, you mes_m(.?

he My Hebrew...lmm;diately I got a job as a Hebrew teacher,
snd I sent tilckets to Russlejand offielslly they coizldnm_
leave Rusaia then.

.Q‘ This was Y2597

&, That was alveady in '25., I send them fur my fether and
mother,, .No, first I send for my sister and brother...for two,
They came and then tégéﬂjointly sent already for my fother and
mother and the baby and I brought them up 211...,I had one
gister 1laft, the one thai was educated that was a drugglst.

She could heve come toohcere, but she was engaged to a doctor.,

Q. A Russien or o Jew?

A, A Jew and he didn't want to leave Russis.,

s He wanted to steay.

A, Stay there. Sc hecause of him, she loved him, and she

wented, . .She didnt't want to get separated. 8¢ she remained,

but the rest of my family I brought over o Cansda.

AN Did that sister survive the sccond world war?

o Yes., I used to correspond with her,

0. You were able to corpespond with hepr,

£ Yes. COnee, Tor some reagon, correspondence stopped.

L Lpfovnant
A that time Zebmén ““yont to Russia to,..for lecture snd I
foound ouk, .. .We belonged to the game sogiety, yﬁﬁr ffathen,

mygelf, to the %L}Qlkf society.
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AN ¥Yeg., Ohy, you did belong to that one?
A, You, I was the fineneisl gocrstary in that suvelilsty for

25 years. Sogn as L find out that he goes to Russis I went
 avﬁP to Prineston Universlty where he lesgtured, went int. his
heme and 1 told him I7had 2 sister in Russis, in Vinnefse 1
.didn't pet any letters for a long time and ghe didn't get mine,
Feo some reagon vhe government interferred, I don't mow the
reason,  Su I asked him., I am writing a letter to my slster.
Take this lebter to Russis and when you come to Mcseow there
you drep it in the mail. They don't censcr the..,.internal

mail.

o, Oh, they donti?
o They used Lo censScr the...
£, The foreign mail,

2, The feoreign mall and I didn't want to involve her in
trouble bocause she waintaing she hag noebody in Russia.

G, -In the United 3tates, you mesh,

& United States. I she %ﬁ-g letter from the United
States, whers dild you get a-juﬁi&b ‘ SQ I ask him to 4 it.
He didn't refuse me which.hﬁ'”ﬁwﬁw£gmgggﬁgfu If they checked
hig,,.

. Tugzage.,

o And they found & letber frﬁmaﬁgtrican te a Bussian
sister, he would heve been in trouble, but he didntt refuse

me, He came To Mosoow, malled the leller to my sister. She
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gt 16 right arvey. Bhe answered oo

(e Ch, she did anawer,

Yeg, Ient't that something?

tie Yes. ;’-;11’;?_&;!1*‘\:. How, for example,,.¥ou tell me thal you
;-Jssnt Lo ﬁemh&t; you know, just s, M %fkf;‘

Hu, end this is how ridiculous - . Ry W2

couldn't go. ..

Gie Noe, no., I neshn...
A, Transpoertetion wasntt allowed,
ia deit a minute. We, no. You misunderstocd what I wes

sbout te say. You say...¥You tell me what happened once you
g£ot, . .you were in @W-"h‘f You didn't tell me how you got

I This 18 what I'm going to tell you new. I couldn't
<L all
travel., Nobudy was ollowed To travel /Z(A/MW There's

ne freedos of transportation in Rusuia%ce We were & group

of performers, Yiddizh theater, we told the government that te MW
WM 3 7& 2y have no perfermers. They have noe Yiddish

theator and we would like to go te the provines Lo pt riorm

Tur the Jews that live in MW Tt lerkid s T nnz‘*mdl and they
allowed us, the whole group, to go o ﬁ%’ and te poerform

C gon?
in Yiddish in thurc. WWNWW & so has a river thot

divides...

G Is that.,.Is M

W (o A Dnaedlios

e
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Q. Oh, Bhat's whers /9 M was Holling me that. I think
rain e ‘

lie and @ had eroessgced there. R

i We knew that as soon ag we resched MW we had a

chance o croas ‘}5.2. D L‘nd e in Ruamnanias. Ye gams to

M f??"’{er M 2 M /4.45 < performancss and scon as ‘alhy! found

Jut who was the Imms Jow chat was.y.’ﬁ& e

We Transporter., .,
The wansyur&afj we srranged with him for Iﬁ{& M

the 1ire was in danger yet becausce the guards could find out
and then we would e in trouble, gut: I was very fortunate., I
had a cousin in Russla. He was aon educated boy. He was an

ageountant and whnen the Bolgheviks came-)he gaw that his 1lifo
was in danger pecouse ne was antie-communist, but in order to

survlve he told thom that he's & coxmunist,ﬁnd he was & very

cble men and in VinnFse ne became a chaf, a high...

3. A ghef L8 8 cook. You dontt mean that., You mean a
commnisgar.
No, cuomaisgar, but his mind wa.s) LU GUME . LALSH GO com:
Ml?flx&"’ and 2lso to cross the border. 8o, how did he o

it? He teold the government in Vinarfd— that he heard that -’sh'l{]

MW there are peouple who are transporters and they...

and they erosged the r',iver and- they eSCapt*d Lo Rumania. /éadmzﬂ‘(b ”"’""@’E
WZZ’JKWW"
G, Lf'fa’ialcc o marvelous play. Whab a scur;y.’ .
Ly 2eidevt ¢

i I welk in MW once and I Seded. /.My gosh, whab

: you doing here? 5kh¢" ™I passed on by on the gtroct
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c?)

)
at Sec
Decuranziy, is thoe CIA, the FBI...

where the
Q. Oh, like the CheKa o
Fia And he goes in as if’j.(}o inte my...I was afraid to
pags. I would pass on the oth =y glde of the street snd he
goes in. I wag waiting when he come out, I sa ys...Sa what
happened? He told them same story in @bﬁaﬁvﬁ, that hc'gdérinw
te invegtigate that busincss, but iwzeder mx 1n order net to
provoke anybody, in order net to give out the seepret, he
docant't want sny guards on the shope.

6. Sounds like something...¥Well, who wrots the Inspector
General? 1Is that C;ﬁfﬁif ? Did the Inspeetor Gencersl...

A, Y@a,Cﬁﬂ?%L

. Thatt's 16, yea. Thutts what 1t sounds like

A. . Be does not went anybody to be on the shere, He wants
to lock himself. How dosg it work? £nd he lmew the night...
that thet would happen and that night we 21l crossged the.,

A Oh, that’s a marvelous story. That really ig. Thait's
why I say it rominds me...It's Like scomething ocut of the
Inspeector General. It's like a farce

A That wag the night . Neboedy touched us,

A He must have been & brillisnt man, I hope hets well
and. ..Is he alright®

A, Hets dead Jﬁw

0. Oh, that's too bad.

A A brillisnt man,. ﬁ[%Z&M ﬁa{
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(2 oh, that is obsolutely fontastic story.

To figur= out thet schoeme,

0. But you ean cnly deo that once, Nobudy else could pull
that. .‘Zféu zﬁz Z-

AT Because they feund oult that they were fooled, They
£
Pound out that %&Z/MM; M%&Mxﬂm a‘m @%M&,

£, How meny Jews left that night? Do you know?

o HWell, we were about 10 in a boat, in seversl boais...
scveral bhoats, W ThE. M;
0, And you wope ot picked up by the gusrd or...0h, he hed

cleared the place oi’Mﬁn't helirve 16, That's roally W

n—v-'-’.-
A You know? That's a marvelous story.

N Marvelous schoma,
o, How d1d he over eome up with an ldea. .. .Did you talk €

him abuub thet aPterwards over?
A It eame T biw, I donn't Know how, but 1t ecame to him..,

that ddes. That was the only wsy to do it. I mean a sure WAY..

Ap%mple rosging.  Thot ineidont hagppencd,
e, Yas, I know.
But he didn't M because 1f they cateh him, 1

Fhey czupght b, they would shoot i‘aim)m_%@ Wtz / K/M”L’g -

Q. I undarstand,
8o her hed to maks srrangsments so that nobody could be

oy thae ghore,

2, Ch, I sce, You mesn he was in double jeopardy.



-
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iva He was in double jeopardy...os a refuges, ss one thab
Wonts to sseape the country wnd on the @%MW he was a

hilgh commlssar.

e Do you know w in what area he was cummissar?
2. m Vinnisa.
e No, I mezan,..Not what geogrmphicallarea, but what...

Loc's sce.. . .Depoartment or division or what,

The Cheka |

Q. He was nimself in the "5/1 e?l/@@ ?

o He wes hiwmasell the Gﬁiég of the C”Lbﬁkt’ . He was
a brillient man. He could talk you into,..You wouldd believe
that yuu're{a man, He had some mouth {8y,

Qe I%atlis very interesting, Sc hie must have been a
revolutlcnery.,..Cl, ne he was not a revoluticnary to start

wlth, you 3ay.

IR Nu, he Decame.
G He became,
Foa He begame...all of the sudden he becsme...blg shot, He

talked them into 1t and they needed people like that and,

perhaps, the first...the flrst few months, perhaps, he showed

: o’
that he could do ﬂJ”QfWV”éu/ﬂég they believe him, _
G 8¢ you came m;éabﬂﬁ&ﬂh}énd while you were therc, bow

did you survive? DLid you have monoy with you?
A, I hed very, little money.

G Did your poroents knew that you were geing to leave?
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fis Yes .
L You uwuld thon,
fe Yea, I told them thot Ghet wes my idea,
A ‘nd they suppoertad you in going. In othar words thaey
wEgreed. . . .
spir Yo Sk
i hey cnecuraged me, 2 They couldn't & stop me anyhow.

Wien T came Lo fﬁ%ﬁkmjybl didnt't have o 1ot of moncy, but you

hewe To boe lucky wherever you go.

(e Tiatts right.

Low A man that came from The ssme Gown that I did lived in
g tuln h}ék@ﬁ&ﬁﬁ&“&nd ha becam: a doctap,

Q. Hde stayed and studdsd theroe o be & dogtor?

£ e wasntt » doctor. In ¥Wur pe they called him ﬁk£4¢z%%
IS's an saslsgtent of docbor. He wes & very able man., He
could ecurce you just os geod ss doetour, sud when he cume to
dat touwn, he gtapted practicing medleine in there snd he
wag very successfful and he was finonceially sucecsssful; ©oo.
8o I game and I find out thav hwt'a thoere., Haturally, he

. W-f )
aceepted meévﬂ%L@ﬁﬁw'aﬂd I lived withh them for a couple of
month, Thon I decidud te go and leave them and go to .
%,W wue o blg city and I Ligured.. .Iﬁ%@.iﬂ-@; am I golng to
stay in that L1tEl: town? What will T do? I ceme tuﬁ&ﬁ%r R
Did you heve spy plan,..Oh, your &;$8§Hﬁ%ﬁ.gmﬂl uas

3
(3.

o get out,

Aa The plans were to got out of Rumenias, too, and that w:s
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the time I met your fother ond o8 soon ag your fother gave me
hig position ip thab V://&gﬁl s I was there for twoe yesrs,

(. So that's where you saved the money up.

FI rnd T sa;ved. poney up and I didnt't need any noney to
be paved because I had bransportaticn from the %mT ,
trangportetion was pold by the J.f)m"" .

¢ Hew wedlt @ minuto. How dld these ftwo things go toe
sether? hile you wers t;e;-:aei’xing In this villaope...Is that

the time dyrdny; witleh you were walting for your quota?

A Mot woag Bhe Diwe .. ,no,
(B That wes buafore.
i Thot o before,

. Highit.

I I wag woeiting Por my W alrecdy a8 sceon as I came

%MI met this voung lady.

fi. Yeo, your wifs, you mean,
A fntd when I metb gy wife T gave up the Isrscl business and

I wrote o lettor to my wnele. ..
3. Moy, letto pet.. . I dont't heve the years stralght in my

nead. 20 yoa ceome, . JYou sresged thoe border sbout 1921, Wes

o 22,
i, 28 and yun stayed in this. .,

L. Or perhons 121 heemuse I sbayoed in &MW’( in that

village for obhout two yeabs, S0 dn 2% T cgsme to W
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R fnd thatt's when you mot your wifo wos in '25.  Now wolt
aomdnuto, . But when wero you working Por bhls Jewlsh swupedor?
f Whenn T cankr GO geﬂf flzl‘fl:]’;} b willope,

AN nd bel Po oyou not ymuf wife you wuru'&ngaged in this
vperatidan,

A Yoes, before, I wos alroeady in, ..

. fad then in é&g§/ you met your wifc.

N But ther...Before I met hoe ny sdnd wes to o so 6 Ispasel,
€3, Right., Right. I undoersiand,

A, Bu® wint T met her, I weote o letfor to my unele.  He
sont me on affedoavit ond that elunged the whols business.

(2, Ok,  &lright. 8o thon once you mede up your mind 6 go
Lo Uho Undited 8totes that wos arcund 'R3-124L,

Ay tol,

i1, By thot time the quots systom had set in.  New you had
o support yourscelld thapo,

e I wos slving Hebrew lessons in é&ﬁ%{‘ .

0. But not in thoe villsge. You left the villape.

Fie I 1oft the villogs complotely,

G o went to é&%/ and you wore glving Hebrew lessing
in /gfﬁ?/ and you eontinued to do .tl'}.{it uncil...

A Until I 1o,

. Until you 1af't. I see and thoet wos sufficlent to support

£y Oy, yoa. fetunlly T upcd toe teke out my wife ss o
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GLELFriend. ., bheaters oo 1 madl /e M’ﬂg

a. Now, win U wos it llke smongest the refugees living thepe
and sl ting, you kmow, for this plan sand then that plan wnd

thern thils hope spd that hops...

£ Well, Bumes are-wory miscreble, like your futhoer. Until
fe got oa viss end by weny té the United Stotes, his 1life wom
nlserable and 8o woys bhe pus8t. Hot evervbody wie successiul
snd prosperrous ng LheV.e..

£l Wag thers & foesling of ermmumity smong these poopled

A, Toney wers wndited. We hed...ond we hod u:jb:n7— roldisT

i

that supported them, Geave ther sume kind of holp...finsncizl

i
—

o

P

a3

Were thers any owliural ?é&m’w”“ﬁﬁ N

£ Nob that I know.. . .nu.

A In ¢iler words was there sny atienpt toe form o cuome
'munity o wes 1t cuoh nepn agadn for, ..

L Everyone wWos for bimselrl,

Fary
i

A Bld you form any clrele of frlends othier than your wife
spd Ly famlly?

A I hed some frionds, yos, bub very few snd I pet hop

WaI¥Y o W !

SN Vory 8oal O

3 Vopry soon and Thaed waes it.

£y How wan 40 your eomve etion with wy Dother thei... . Dig you

e plek 40 up cgedn when you eaie To the Inlited Stetesy I
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ndan wes 1t thet short meeting...that...2fter 21l how leng dld
you Know my‘fatﬁjr there in Rumanila?

By Viry, very little because he Lleft right sway.

Bie It was Just & chance cngountsr actuslly. Alright. Toen
whet heppened? Did you then moet aguin here?

L Then we met...Woaere did we meet? I den?t remomber whops
we met, Was he in New York?

Grue Yes. He was in Menhatten,

&, I think I...8:e¢? I cen't remcmber whers I met nim end
hoew often I met him in New York.

G The resson I'sm asking is that..,

i g/p.e/vta
o0 Xes, what a guestion, I gent to your father's home in.,.

Wheye was 1t? M)’ Py );zw‘%wé
G Whepre?
Vipetd_.
Fie They geé Friconds with the Kaufmans().
e Yes, they were, They grew up in the same Shrede/ .
fa Yes, =nd we were friends with the Kasufmans .
AN How were you friends?
Foy Beratrice Keufmsn and Nathen Keufwen and my wife lived

L) § L
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Tapoe 8 « Jlde 2 .

Q. Boeouse Nothen Esufman came from éaZUQLéb .

A Yerg, ond ha lived; we'll say, on o street R
on 2 8treet., My wife's famlly lived right scross frowm then
on the same sbroct and they met each other snd they knew each
other. My wife used o come into Beabtrilee®s ond to Nathan snd
Lo his aunt, |

AN “You mesn in }zuflwé@ 7

A, No, in /3 j’,%z .

& Onh, I see, Whon.,.

fia When they were refugess in Z?ﬁ%%r/ they met., T met
them there, toc. And when we cems to New York wnd they Wery
Priends with the Ksufnens and we were friends with the Kouf-

lnl"ing LI

. So, again, it was through your wife, esscentially.
A, Yes. So then we were friends and we used te go to your

father, Yow Father met w h me and then we belongd e the
game goelety., 80 we w ro very close,
A I seo, I was just wondsping how the commectlon wes mado

becsuse 1t was sueh a qulek mectling and such o chuney thing.

A, Actunlly the meebing was slroady in New York.

0. Yes, ond 1€ wes Uhreough the Koeulfmeme reslly.

& Througn tho Koufmens,

(A I see. 8o the only psymoncnt echnections. . Whst Itm

trying o =atoblish is whethsry durdng thig tdme. .. T meon you

spent quiie o number of yoars in ﬁwwox@“if you stup to think
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sboeut 1t., .sbout four years.

AL Almest four,
. Yeas. ., whether you mede ony smeaningful commections other

then your wife and through her you didg make & few.

A, Yos.

(A Her family snd her.,

A fnd the Kaufmens.

8] ind the Knufmans and thatts id, .

ki Thatts it...becaus: wQ left. We loft M@ht BRCY

They lof't to the Unlied States and we left to Canada.

e I see. Well, is there anything...Now let me sce if Ifve
covered everything end then meanwbile you think whether thore's
anything that., .mnything more, It's been very interesiving...

I hope,..Por me...I hepe 1€ has booen for you, oo,

A Yen, oh yeo, 4ﬂ£&t’av2¥4“M”QdyU'

(1 Tell me something, yes., When you were...Detts go back
to o Gl A&éﬁgﬁﬁ for a minute, Did your fathy r dress in o
modern, in moedern..,.whst was eonsidered st that time modern

dress or did he ®E weud sgEfism 2 cofton or...

i I had the wniform, government unifoprm.

Qe Yes, but when you were 11ttEle snd how did your fathur.,.
Ay No, no. ¥UWhen I was in school up to 1919,

Q. I knoew, bub beforc,,.¥You wore gtlll living ot home..,

A When I Jilved at home I wore Just cxaetly The seme os

all the rest of the...
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AN Well, what did thoe rest of the pupills woap?
A Punts, shirt and a jucket,
Q. slpight, In cther words you dida't wear a caftan op

anything like...

b No.
.'Q. You didn't have to wear Zzéfé
& Ne, no, no. My fether wosn't that orthodex,
. ok, That's what I went to know,
I Thaet's 1t.
Q S¢ sven in the way his son was droesgsed, 1t was shouwn.

That's right. Fracticually no one in my town hed any
f)/m

Q. Oh, 1s thuat right?
A, Hot wne., Thatts the resson why I teld you that noae
cof them woas orthudox o /m cerelipious. . .n;:;neff Ther(na-:
wers no /7ﬂ4¢’ in my btown,
Ge How far were you from /Zbéudé% Do you know?
By 50 miles from L@ﬁﬂffﬂLEnd seven milaes from fu (?) .
It's about close to 60 miles.
o, 60 miles...60 miles is not very far nowadays. You
Jdmow 16 was a difference of almost a century in the woey Chey

drossed. (il fare Jevn, He i Fiw Lnirs,

.sh! L] B{} m/
Al Yea., They were mach mopre orthodox in W’

A, Itts possible. I can't tell you.
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s That's very intercesting. 0k. and your fsther also

then wore what would be a modern bugincss sulv.

A, Yes, but,...
A Is that correct?
A, He also had, for :iézéé¢5, he had that long. ..
Q. Toe 7517515 and the. ..
A, 7#8,#"5/5/ ncbody saw him. He worse a 7”43,///\5 3 DLﬂchW@
o He wore a fx&ﬁﬂ .
5, m Skl
. Ok.
A. - But as far as 7L5/7Z55 1s counecerned, I don't remcaber,
Q. No.
foa I den?'t remember., I 0&0@ F . After M years I guve
up cverything, but for Saturday he had a 7 )/ﬁ/yg @/M
Q. Oh, he did.
A Yea.
Jgu
Q. Was 1t of silk? You mean like a black silk ems sort
of oo gobardine? It would be that gabardine.
Al It would be geberdlne or sometbilng like that, yso. He
wouldntt go to 5;M&L LA ¢, jacket,
Q} Ne, thet's g whet I wanted t. know, yoz.
i That would be...antagonize,., .,
O The éummunity.
A, The ¢ommunity...religion, but deasp in his heart...

A Again, did you discuss...Werc you able Lo telk to your
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fother? You know communicate with hlim about thesce things or

was 1t Just by...that you could observe?

b I could observe.
G, I see.
AL We didn't discuss it...because the time to diseuss is

when you beccme 17...18,...19. In those days I wos out of the
#ﬁ¢uytf , out of the house, I was a student. I didn't
bether with that, but I ohserved the way his...polnt of view,
the way he behaved himself, I saw that he was exaetly the
vpposite of my mother,
(s and you actuelly preferrcd your fathor's way of think-
ing to your mothp?s.

ﬁﬁfﬁz 4L'52£ I respected mether. I respocted hor |
ways. I gald...I figured...This i8 her way of life. I o

wouldnt® s an?%ﬁ?nize,.although I antagonized her with the

‘*p”h”;baﬂ% ut I figurced I couldn'®t toke 1L anymore snd I
had to § . .  IPorgst=¥t and that's 1t; but otherwise

whe was I to tell her how te conduct the heart, The home
was kosher, It's uut of the question, I weuld nover dere
eat moat ﬁﬁ&V/ﬁﬂ% in my housa, ny.porens house. I wouldnti
wntagonize her that far. Ag far o I'm conecrned, I didn't
went Qéfffﬁf . She ¢gouldntt tall me into 1t and that's 1it,
Whenn I teook them over to Cenada, neturally they come Lo my
house and my wife is not kosher. Shets not pelipicus wnd

my wother must have knew 1tv, you Know, She told my wifc...
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Got out of the kitehien., It11l take overpénd ohe took over for

shout 14 or 16 wgeks untild thty/é;LMJQE' . Sy ol over and

sho menaged, My wife didn’t hove snything against4£f*

. It kept peaece in the family.
£ That was very clever of her. Some wouldnt't.  Some

wuuldn’t...k{ég thie mother-in-law,

Go Thatts rignt. It wee clever on both parts,
A Botir parts. Mother saw that she could not live in

thess conditions. My wife knew,..

G That your mother covuld not live thost way.

fa 86 sne gave in., She went out and it was peace on
ealpbly,

Q. That's rdgiic because 1T was only temporary affter 511,
n, It was tumporary. We knew That es scion as thoey find, ..
establish a 1iving..,.home. .. They ¢ <« .

Q. L0k, Well, do you have anything that yow would lilkke to

add un your own thot sticks in your menory?

A I think I told you cverytidng I know.
e Ok, Then 111 say thank you very muach.
Ao You'lze: weleome, I'm sure I ecouldn't do 16 for o

botter person.

Qs Thonk you.

ke
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